
Date Published:8 November 2021     

Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee

Wednesday 17 November 2021 at 10.00 am

Gloucester City Council Chamber

AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES 

To note any apologies for absence.

Cllr Tony Dale

2  MINUTES (Pages 1 - 10)

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 15 September 2021.

Cllr Tony Dale

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

To receive any pecuniary or personal interests by members.

Cllr Tony Dale

INFORMATION REPORTS

4  GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

To receive an update on the work of the Gloucestershire Economic 
Growth Scrutiny Committee. 

Cllr Matt 
Babbage

5  EMPLOYMENT AND SKILLS (Pages 11 - 30)

To receive an update on the following:

 The skills landscape and emerging policy changes;
 The Gloucestershire Employment and Skills Strategy;
 The upskilling and employment of local people, and how this is 

being achieved; and
 An analysis on the shortage of delivery/HGV drivers in 

Gloucestershire. 

Pete Carr

6  REVIEW OF GLOUCESTERSHIRE COVID-19 ECONOMIC RECOVERY 
PLANS (Pages 31 - 56)

Colin Chick



    

To receive an update on and review of the Gloucestershire economic 
recovery collaboration process, including:

 An update on Gloucestershire County Council (GCC)’s Covid-19 
Economic Dashboard;

 All councils to provide a brief verbal review of their economic 
recovery plans. 

7  FOREST OF DEAN BIOSPHERE RESERVE (Pages 57 - 58)

To receive an update on the Forest of Dean Biosphere Reserve 
Proposals.

Wendy Jackson

8  STRATEGIC PLANNING IN GLOUCESTERSHIRE (Pages 59 - 70)

To receive the annual update on strategic and local plans in 
Gloucestershire. 

Mike Dawson

9  GFIRST LEP UPDATE (Pages 71 - 80)

To receive an update on the work of the GFirst LEP, including on:

 Proposals for a Made in Gloucestershire scheme; and
 The Government’s review of LEPs.

Dev 
Chakraborty

DECISION REPORTS

10  BUSINESS RATE POOL (Pages 81 - 88)

a) To receive an update on the Business Rate Pool; and

b) To consider an SEDF funding request to enable the investigation 
of options to better connect Kemble Train Station with Cirencester 
Town Centre. 

Andrew 
Cummings

WORK PLAN

11  FORWARD (WORK) PLAN (Pages 89 - 92)

To note the Committee work plan, and to consider items for discussion at 
future meetings, including emerging SEDF proposals. 

Cllr Tony Dale

12  FUTURE MEETINGS 

To note the dates of meetings for 2022 (all meetings to start at 10am):

16 March 2022.

Cllr Tony Dale

Membership –  Cllr Philip Robinson (Vice-Chair) Cllr Rowena Hay, Cllr Rob Bird, Cllr Richard 
Cook, Cllr Doina Cornell, Cllr Tony Dale (Chair) and Cllr Bernie O'Neill
Dev Chakraborty



    

(a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about 
whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the Director of Policy, 
Performance and Governance, Rob Ayliffe 01452 328198 /fax: 425149/ e-mail: 
rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk) prior to the start of the meeting.

(b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect minutes or 
reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact: Laura Powick, Democratic Services Adviser 
:01452 324205/fax: 425850/e-mail: laura.powick@gloucestershire.gov.uk

(c) GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS

Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is 
permitted subject to the Local Government Access to Information provisions.  Please 
contact Democratic Services (tel 01452 425230) to make the necessary arrangements 
ahead of the meeting.  If you are a member of the public and do not wish to be 
photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services Officer on duty at the 
meeting.

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as 
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point which is outside the main entrance to 
Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  Please remain there and await further instructions.

mailto:rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:laura.powick@gloucestershire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 -

GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH JOINT 
COMMITTEE

MINUTES of the meeting of the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee 
held on Wednesday 15 September 2021 commencing at 10.00 am at the Council 
Chamber - Shire Hall, Gloucester.

PRESENT
MEMBERSHIP:

Cllr Rowena Hay
Cllr Richard Cook
Cllr Tony Dale (Chair)

Dev Chakraborty
Cllr Bernie O'Neill
Cllr Victoria Atherstone

Substitutes: Cllr David Gray

Apologies: Cllr Rob Bird and Cllr Philip Robinson

297. APOLOGIES 

Apologies were received from Cllr Rob Bird (Tewkesbury Borough Council) and Cllr 
Philip Robinson (Gloucestershire County Council). Cllr David Gray substituted at 
the meeting for Cllr Robinson.

298. ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIR 

Following the standing down of Cllr Bernie O’Neill as Vice-Chair of the Committee, 
members voted to elect a new Vice-Chair.

Cllr Philip Robinson, Gloucestershire County Council, was duly elected as Vice-
Chair of the GEGJC for the 2021/22 Civic Year.

299. MINUTES 

The minutes of the meeting held on 9 June 2021 were agreed as a correct record.

300. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of interest were made at the meeting.

301. GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

Cllr Matt Babbage, Chair of the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Scrutiny 
Committee (GEGSC), provided the Committee with an update on the activities of 
the GEGSC.

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

It was noted that the GEGSC were due to meet this afternoon for their first official 
meeting in person since the local elections in May. Members had been working 
offline with officers to produce a work plan for the rest of this year.

It was understood that the GEGSC would now receive a regular item on the 
Economic Recovery dashboard. Additionally, it was noted that the main item at this 
afternoon’s meeting was the future of the high streets where the GEGSC would be 
receiving a presentation from Nigel Jobson, Chair of the LEP Retail and the High 
Street Sector Group and Chief Commercial Officer for Maybe, and Andy Sanders, 
Community and Economic Development Manager at Tewkesbury Borough Council. 
The GEGSC would discuss the presentations and consider bringing a short report 
back to the GEGJC for further investigation.

302. OVERVIEW OF GLOUCESTERSHIRE'S FARMING AND FOOD SECTOR 

The Committee received a presentation from Lizzie Dyer and Ben Dent, 
Gloucestershire Food Partnership, on Gloucestershire’s farming and food sector, its 
contribution to the local economy, and the challenges and opportunities ahead.

Members were advised that the Gloucestershire agri-food sector, representing the 
“end to end” food chain, employed just over 50,000 people, or 14.9 % of the 
workforce compared to 13.2% nationally; and that in 2019, the agriculture, forestry, 
fishing, mining and quarrying sectors contributed around £187 million to 
Gloucestershire's GVA, equating to around 1.0% of total GVA which was more than 
the national average of 0.7%.

Tourism also had a direct contribution to the sector and was an area that could be 
exploited, with 32% of the spending by tourists in Gloucestershire being devoted to 
food and drink, generating £340m annually. 
The Gloucestershire Food & Farming Partnership built on the strengths of the 
County and the work already going on across public, private, research and 
voluntary sectors, working alongside a number of partners including Hartpury 
College, the Royal Agricultural University, and Campden BRI.

The Committee was informed that the County’s agri-food sector had the potential to 
address a number of challenges, in addition to supporting economic development in 
Gloucestershire. In particular, it was explained that the sector could be utilised to 
address social inequality and health issues. In some parts of Gloucestershire, 10 
percent of adults experienced hunger because they could not afford food; and more 
than 60 percent of adults in the County were overweight. Local food businesses 
and farmers could be involved in helping to improve the County’s health and eating 
habits. 

It was also noted that the food and farming sector could have a significant role to 
play in addressing the climate change emergency through the reduction of carbon 
emissions and capturing and storing emissions, as well as in improving local 
biodiversity. 

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

Members understood that this sector was facing significant post-Brexit policy 
changes. The end of the Basic Payment Scheme since leaving the European Union 
would result in the removal of nearly £40million of support every year for 
Gloucestershire farmers between now and 2028. A new Government agricultural 
funding scheme was not due to come into place until 2024, and it would not be 
designed to replace the Basic Payment Scheme. The financial implications of this 
were significant and could impact the survival of smaller farms; food security and 
self-sufficiency; and the agricultural landscape.

Members were advised that the sector also faced challenges relating to climate 
change adaption and the use of new techniques and processes to meet new 
climate conditions, as well as labour shortages. 

The Committee was informed that as well as the challenges faced by the agri-food 
sector, there were also a number of opportunities for the sector in Gloucestershire. 
These included developing partnerships to enhance Gloucestershire’s food supply 
chains, such as through opening public procurement and anchor institution 
contracts to SME suppliers; as well as encouraging more demand for 
Gloucestershire produce, such as by introducing a ‘Produced in Gloucestershire’ 
scheme. Additionally, a ‘Food for Life’ model could be used in schools to educate 
on food in order to drive up the demand for local and more ecological produce. 

The Committee was advised that work had begun on a draft strategy by the 
Gloucestershire Food Partnership encompassing their vision to build a healthy 
circular economy in food and farming that enabled a viable future for farmers, 
created jobs across the supply chain, optimised natural capital and reduced food-
related illness. The Partnership would be keen to talk to the district and county 
councils in order to progress their strategy. 

The Committee discussed the presentation they had received. In particular, a 
question was asked as to how young people and graduates could be retained to 
work in this sector in the County. In response it was recognised that there was a 
perception issue around jobs in farming and food, and that this needed to be 
addressed.

It was recognised that the agri-food sector had the second largest growth potential 
in Gloucestershire, after cyber and digital, and that it was a sector often overlooked.

Members were informed that GFirst LEP was working alongside Gloucestershire 
County Council (GCC) on a joint ‘Made in Gloucestershire’ initiative. An update on 
progress with this would be provided at the next Committee meeting. 

In response to a query relating to opportunities to grow procurement and sales 
though local companies such as Gloucester Services, it was explained that 
Gloucester Services had provided many local food businesses with a foot on the 
ladder, and that there were lots of opportunities for retail procurement in the 
County. It was also important to consider opportunities for the sector through public 
procurement and hospitality. 

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

One member queried how local food supplies could be made more affordable. In 
response, it was explained that fresh local produce could be inexpensive, however 
thought needed to be given as to how to improve access for those without cars and 
to improve supply chains. The public also needed to be given the confidence that 
local produce could be fresher and last longer than produce from a supermarket. 

It was also queried how local authorities could provide support for farmers in light of 
the gap in funding and the climate emergency.

There was a discussion as to how the public’s relationship with food could be 
improved, particularly in order to reduce waste. It was recognised that a reduction in 
food waste would also lead to a reduction in carbon emissions, and education, 
particularly of children, had a role to play in achieving this. 
The Committee thanked the presenters for their presentation and noted the report. 

303. GLOUCESTERSHIRE COVID-19 ECONOMIC RECOVERY PLANNING 

Colin Chick, Executive Director for Economy, Environment and Infrastructure, GCC, 
provided the Committee with an update on GCC’s Covid-19 Economic Recovery 
Plan.

Members were informed that the recovery plan mirrored the Council’s ambition for 
Gloucestershire as set out in its Looking to the Future strategy, to make 
Gloucestershire a place where people want to visit and live, to improve the quality 
of life for residents, and to provide opportunities for businesses to be successful. 
Numerous infrastructure and connectivity schemes were being pursued by the 
Council as part of this, including the M5 J9 improvement scheme, and a network of 
cycle routes between Gloucester and Cheltenham.

Members were reminded of the three priority areas for recovery: people, place and 
connectivity; employment and skills; and infrastructure, economy and growth. 

The Committee was informed that work was underway to develop an Employment 
and Skills Hub as part of the employment and skills priority of the recovery plan. 
Members were provided with an overview of the factors contributing to the need for 
the Hub, and the benefits of introducing it. The Hub would provide a “single front 
door” offer, whereby key partners, such as the GFirst LEP, schools, colleges, 
universities, independent training providers, and the DWP/Jobcentre Plus would 
work alongside each other to help get people into employment and education. The 
Hub would also enable gaps in adult education to be identified and courses to 
bridge these gaps could then be developed. 

The Committee was informed that a response from the Government regarding the 
Community Renewal Fund bid had not yet been received, nor had there been an 
update on Levelling Up bids. 

One member asked whether help could be received from the County Council to 
improve rail connectivity in the Forest of Dean and Cotswold districts. Colin Chick 
advised that the focus was on increasing rail services on the M5 corridor between 

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

Bristol and Birmingham to help alleviate overcrowding on the motorway. Currently 
only 1 percent of travellers chose to travel by rail instead of using the M5. However, 
lobbying had taken place to secure a number of additional rail services, particularly 
those which would benefit the south Cotswolds, in addition to the introduction of a 
new demand responsive bus service in the Cotswolds. 

One member asked a question as to how the skills hub would relate to increasing 
opportunities for local employment, particularly within the development of major 
local projects. In response it was explained that GCC procurement staff had 
received training on building social value into contracts. An update on the upskilling 
and employment of local people would also be provided at the next Committee 
meeting. 

There was a further question relating to the cost of public transport, which was too 
expensive for some young people. In response it was noted that this was an issue 
that was being looked at. In terms of access to the Employment and Skills Hub, 
members were informed that the aim was to work outreach within libraries in rural 
areas and towns to build those connections with people who may find it difficult to 
travel. 

Lisa McCance, Director at Shared Intelligence, provided the Committee with an 
update on the Economic Recovery Dashboard. The Economic Recovery Dashboard 
was attached as a supplement to the agenda papers for this meeting. 

District council representatives were invited to provide the Committee with an 
update on the work being carried out in their areas to promote and support 
economic recovery. 

Cotswold District Council
- Progress was being made on the development of the Gloucestershire 

Applied Digital Skills Centre at Cirencester College.
- There had been an increase in the demand for warehouse space in the 

district, and the sale of the Mitsubishi site was to be completed by the end of 
this month and would be retained as a site for employment. 

- A number of projects funded through the Welcome Back fund were 
progressing.

- A number of larger events in the district, such as motoring shows, were 
bringing people back to town centres. 

- A number of local businesses had expressed their ambitions to implement 
green measures.

Forest of Dean District Council
- The Forest Recovery Action Group continued to meet on a monthly basis.
- Focus was on developing tourism within the Forest of Dean and Wye Valley.
- Local towns had been encouraged to submit bids for funding through the 

Welcome Back fund.
- A new Growth Hub in Mitcheldean had opened in August to support local 

businesses.
- Local businesses could sign up to receive a regular ‘Business Matters’ email.

Page 5



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 6 -

Stroud District Council
- The Council was working with local market towns on the allocation of 

Welcome Back funding.
- The Brimscombe Port project was moving on to its next stage to find a 

development partner. 
- Permission to begin the canals project had been secured.
- A district-wide economic development strategy would be considered by the 

Council this autumn/winter.

Tewkesbury Borough Council
- The Council was looking to relaunch the business support grant scheme in 

the autumn.
- The Growth Hub in the district had reopened to provide face-to-face support 

to local businesses.
- An event was taking place today where local businesses could exhibit their 

carbon neutral activities.
- An economic development tourism strategy had been developed for launch 

in 2022.
- A bid for a youth enterprise hub had been submitted.

Gloucester City Council
- Work to pursue funding, support local events and progress regeneration 

projects was continuing.

Cheltenham Borough Council 
- There had been lots of interest in the Golden Valley development scheme 

following its launch.
- Funding had been set aside to drive footfall on the high street, such as for an 

ice rink.

There was a discussion as to the shortages of HGV and delivery drivers and the 
impact it could have on supply chains. An analysis of this issue and its impact in 
Gloucestershire would be presented at the next Committee meeting. 

304. GFIRST LEP UPDATE 

Dev Chakraborty, Deputy Chief Executive of GFirst LEP, presented the Committee 
with an update on the work of the GFirst LEP.

The Committee was informed that Ruth Dooley, partner and head of the litigation 
support team at Hazlewoods LLP, had been announced as the new Chair of the 
GFirst LEP.

Members also noted that four new Board members had been appointed to the LEP 
Board after the four previous members had come to the end of their permitted terms 
on the Board.

Page 6



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 7 -

The Committee noted that 107 grants had been awarded to businesses across 
Gloucestershire from the Additional Restrictions Grant (Discretionary Scheme) to 
help get more of them online and trading online, after the six local authorities 
agreed to pool their funds together to provide these grants to support local SMEs. 

The Committee was advised that the LEP hoped to develop a further similar 
scheme whereby councils pooled their funds to provide local businesses with 
support to become more sustainable and carbon neutral. 

Finally, members were also advised that there had been a delay in the 
announcement of the outcome of Levelling Up fund bids due to the significant 
number of applications that had been received. It was hoped that an announcement 
would tie in with the autumn budget. 

305. BUSINESS RATE POOL 

Andrew Cummings, Strategic Director of Resources, Stroud District Council, 
provided the Committee with an update on the Gloucestershire Business Rate Pool. 

The Committee was advised on the pool outturn position for 2020/21. In particular, 
there had been a pool gain of £3.66 million, and £731k of this has been distributed 
to the Strategic Economic Development Fund.

Members were updated on the forecasts for the pool for 2021/22. Pool gains for this 
year were expected to be higher, and were currently estimated at £4.238million.

The Committee noted that the future for the business rates pool was uncertain and 
was dependant on potential government reforms; however there was no update on 
this currently. Members would be updated once more information was known. 

Following a query, it was understood that the expectation was that the pool would 
continue for the next year as a consultation on reforming the system had not been 
carried out.

306. FORWARD (WORK) PLAN 

Requests were made for an update on the Made in Gloucestershire proposals and 
for an analysis on delivery/HGV drivers in Gloucestershire to be 
presented at the next meeting in November 2021. 

An SEDF funding request to investigate options to better connect Kemble Town 
Centre with Cirencester Town Centre would also be received at the next meeting. 

307. FUTURE MEETINGS 

The Committee noted the meeting dates for the remainder of 2021 and for 2022. 

Page 7



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 8 -

CHAIRPERSON

Meeting concluded at 12.00 pm

Page 8



Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee actions – 15 September 2021

Topic Action Responsibility Progress

149. Overview of 
Gloucestershire’s 
Farming and Food 
Sector

To provide the Committee with an update on the 
Made in Gloucestershire proposals at a future 
meeting. 

Dev 
Chakraborty

To be presented at the 
Committee meeting on 17 
November 2021.

263. Gloucestershire 
COVID-19 Economic 
Recovery Planning

To include the following in the update on the 
Employment and Skills Strategy at the next 
meeting:

- The upskilling and employment of local 
people (How is this being achieved?)

- Analysis on delivery/HGV drivers in 
Gloucestershire (How many are there/ is 
there a shortage?)

Pete Carr To be presented at the 
Committee meeting on 17 
November 2021.

350. Forward (Work) Plan To include the above items in the work plan in 
addition to the following decision:

- SEDF funding request to investigate 
options to better connect Kemble Train 
Centre to Cirencester Town Centre. 

Laura Powick Completed. 

P
age 9



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 11

A
genda Item

 5



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 13



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

Page 1 of 8 
Version 1 - Last updated 17/10/21 

Gloucestershire Skills Strategy 2021-2025 – Structure info for GEGJC November 2021 

Structure of Skills Strategy 

Section Pages Overview 

Introduction   

Executive 
summary 
 

  

Overview of skills 
strategy 

 Purpose – direction for local and national E & S providers working with us, to encourage collaboration, to help secure further 
resources, to encourage local businesses/employers to continue to articulate their skills needs in a way that enables providers 
to support them, to give a sense of overall direction in the face of short-term issues/unintended consequences of EU 
Exit/Covid pandemic 
 
Direction of travel – Builds on previous work in SEP, ESIF Strategy, LIS and Local Skills Report 
 
Main elements 

• Skills that meet business needs 

• Skills that support individuals to achieve their potential 

• Skills intelligence, co-ordination and investment 
 

Objectives of the 
strategy 
 

 1.Businesses/employers are able to recruit and retain the staff they need and with the skills they need to deliver their 
business objectives/grow 
 
2.Individuals are able to maximise their potential through developing their skills 
 
3.‘Declutter’, simplify and co-ordinate E & S work in Gloucestershire 
 
4. Secure additional funding to enable 1. and 2. 
 

Measuring 
success 
 
 

 The strategy is supported by an E & S action plan (see section X on pages Y to Z) and each action has its own success 
measure/s. 
 

P
age 15



 

Page 2 of 8 
Version 1 - Last updated 17/10/21 

How the strategy 
was developed 
 

 Progression from Strategic Economic Plan (SEP) and ESIF Strategy, Local Industrial Strategy, Employment & Skills Evidence 
Base, Local Skills Report 
Input from small scale local employer survey and focus groups, discussions with local authority leaders, input from training 
providers, input from GSAP working group 
 

Skills that meet 
business needs 
 

 Overview of local economy with explanation of mainly SMEs, numbers employed per sector, etc. 

Factors affecting 
local 
employment and 
skills needs 

  

Impacts of Covid 
and EU Exit 
 

 Shift from ‘employers market’ ‘candidates market’; has accelerated and amplified issues that 

Shortages of 
talent to fill 
particular roles 
 

 Reduced number of skilled workers in UK 
 

Pressure to 
increase wages 
and benefits 
 

  

Increases in job 
postings 
 

 Healthy job market but shifts in jobs advertised (explain increases and decreases). Highlight which Districts are showing the 
fastest/greatest growth e.g. Tewkesbury. Overview of pre-Covid figures and patterns through to now. 

Job retention 
scheme – 
Furlough 
 

 Overview of pattern and numbers on furlough, sectors and ages affected to now. Emphasise impacts on 50+ and young 
people.  

Growing the 
talent pipeline in 
the UK 

 Previous reliance of some sectors on EU and overseas workers – now need to attract more UK staff. For some sectors this will 
require structural changes beyond the scope of this strategy e.g. higher wages, better working conditions and Ts & Cs. 

P
age 16



 

Page 3 of 8 
Version 1 - Last updated 17/10/21 

 

Covid-19 and EU 
Exit factors 
combined with 
other existing 
factors 
 

  

Ageing 
population and 
replacement 
demand 
 

 Overview of the underlying factors pre-pandemic and EU exit 

Cross-sector skills 
needs 

 Themes/needs emerging cross-sector 
• Apprenticeships 

• Digital and cyber 

• Green/sustainable 

• Leadership & Management 

 
What can be done locally 
Link to Action Plan and any other proposals from the business survey 
 

Future Skills 
Needs 
 

 • Digital 

• Achieving Net Zero 

• Sustainable construction 
 

Sector specific 
employment and 
skills needs - 
existing and 
emerging  
 

 Explanation of structure/content of this section. 
 
 

P
age 17



 

Page 4 of 8 
Version 1 - Last updated 17/10/21 

Advanced 
Engineering and 
Manufacturing 
 

 Sectoral issues 
Significant sector in the county. Covid has hit demand for aerospace in particular. 
 
Specific sector skills and employment needs 
 
What can be done locally 
Link to LSIP Trailblazer work by Business West 
 

Agri-food and 
Rural 
 

 Sectoral issues 
 
Specific sector skills and employment needs 
 
What can be done locally 
Maximise ‘tech to plate’ project findings 
 

Banking and 
Finance 
 

 Sectoral issues 
 
Specific sector skills and employment needs 
 
What can be done locally 
 

Business and 
Professional 
 

 Sectoral issues 
 
Specific sector skills and employment needs 
 
What can be done locally 
 

Construction and 
infrastructure 
 

 Sectoral issues 
 
Specific sector skills and employment needs 
 
What can be done locally 
 

P
age 18



 

Page 5 of 8 
Version 1 - Last updated 17/10/21 

Cyber and Digital 
 

 Sectoral issues 
 
Specific sector skills and employment needs 
 
What can be done locally 
Maximise employment opportunities presented by Golden Valley Development & The Forum; share lessons learned from the 
Cirencester College’s ‘digification’ of curricula; promote and extend Digital Skills Bootcamps training opportunities; extend 
work done by CYNAM/Careers Hub on pathways into employment and schools investment in digital & cyber skills 
 

Energy 
 

 Sectoral issues 
 
Specific sector skills and employment needs 
 
What can be done locally 
 

Green, 
renewables, 
retrofit 

 Sectoral issues 
Qualifications and training lags skills needs of rapidly developing sector 
 
Specific sector skills and employment needs 
 
What can be done locally 
Link with national initiatives (Catapult and Green Jobs Taskforce + WECA + Cornwall SDF-funded green skills centre) 
 

Health and social 
care 
 

 Sectoral issues 
 
Specific sector skills and employment needs 
 
What can be done locally 
Link with LSIP Trailblazer work by Business West 
 

Retail and the 
High Street 
 

 Sectoral issues 
 
Specific sector skills and employment needs 

P
age 19



 

Page 6 of 8 
Version 1 - Last updated 17/10/21 

 
What can be done locally 
 

Visitor Economy 
and Tourism  
 

 Sectoral issues 
 
Specific sector skills and employment needs 
 
What can be done locally 
 

Issues and 
opportunities 
highlighted by 
Local Authorities 
 

 Issues:  
 
What can be done locally 

Skills that 
support 
individuals to 
achieve their 
potential 
 

  

The need for high 
quality, 
accessible CEIAG 

 Issues 
 
What can be done locally 
Child Friendly Glos, Retain and expand Careers Hub, greater integration of Adviza via E & S Hub 
 

Vocational 
qualifications 
and programmes 
 

 Issues 
National qualifications review; intro of T-levels 
 
What can be done locally 
 

Functional skills 
 

 Issues 
 
What can be done locally 

P
age 20



 

Page 7 of 8 
Version 1 - Last updated 17/10/21 

Business start-up 
skills 
 

 Issues 
 
What can be done locally 

Inclusive 
employment 
support -  
national & local 

 Overview and need for local co-ordination and collaboration. 

JETS  Issues 
 
What can be done locally 

Kickstart  Issues 
 
What can be done locally 

Restart  Issues 
 
What can be done locally 

Local initiatives 
(GEM, Workstart) 
 

 Issues 
 
What can be done locally 

Skills 
intelligence, co-
ordination and 
investment 
 

 Brief overview 

Skills intelligence 
 

 Labour market Information (LMI); Careers Support;  
 

Skills co-
ordination 
 

 Complex landscape, needs simplifying and decluttering for employers and individuals as well as E & S providers. 
 
Strategic co-ordination through GSAP and links to DfE (this strategy, annual local skills report). Operational co-ordination 
through E & S Hub and Careers Hub. 

Skills Investment  
 

 Funding routes: CRF; UKSPF; SDF; LSIPs; possible county deal 
 
Social Value: E & S outcomes built into local contracts. Districts already delivering these. GCC major work on this. 

P
age 21



 

Page 8 of 8 
Version 1 - Last updated 17/10/21 

 

Action Plan 
 

   

Annexes 
 

  

Links to key 
previous 
documents (SEP, 
ESIF Strategy, LIS, 
Local Skills 
report) 
 

  

E & S Evidence 
base 
 

  

Business group 
master plans 
 

  

Business group 
responses to 
survey 
 

  

CERTF 
apprenticeships 
survey findings 

  

Sectoral national 
skills reports 

 Provide links 

 

 

P
age 22



Careers Advice 

P
age 23



How do I get careers 
advice? 

How do I get a job? 

How do I get 
additional skills? 

P
age 24



This is a sample text.  

HGV Driver 
3,951 People (7% above national 

average) 

• Comparison: 

• Worcestershire has an estimated 4,378 

(33% above the national average) 

• Swindon and Wiltshire has an 

estimated 4,738 (18% above the 

national average) 

Employment 

Job  

Postings 

National 

Solutions 

Gloucestershire College bidding for 

HGV training contract 

Local  

Solutions 

Gloucestershire 

Specific Issues 

Structural  

Sector Issues 

• Test centre in Gloucester closed 

• Test centres in Bristol & Swindon  

       3 month waiting lists 

• Local training organisation exited from 

the market 

• EU exit – loss of EU drivers (but also a 

Europe-wide issue) 

• Conditions – hours, overnights, basic 

facilities, impact on home life. 

• Additional training required post-HGV 

license (e.g. refrigeration, Hazchem etc) 

495 

531 

579 

2019 2020 2021

Shortage 

P
age 25



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 27



Careers Advice

P
age 28



This is a sample text. 

HGV Driver 3,951 People (7% above national 
average)
• Comparison:
• Worcestershire has an estimated 4,378 

(33% above the national average)
• Swindon and Wiltshire has an 

estimated 4,738 (18% above the 
national average)

Employment

Job 
Postings

National 
Solutions

Gloucestershire College bidding for 
HGV training contract

Local  
Solutions

Gloucestershire 
Specific Issues

Structural 
Sector Issues

• Test centre in Gloucester closed
• Test centres in Bristol & Swindon 

3 month waiting lists
• Local training organisation exited from 

the market

• EU exit – loss of EU drivers (but also a 
Europe-wide issue)

• Conditions – hours, overnights, basic 
facilities, impact on home life.

• Additional training required post-HGV 
license (e.g. refrigeration, Hazchem etc)

495
531

579

2019 2020 2021

Shortage

P
age 29



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1

Meeting GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH JOINT COMMITTEE 
(GEGJC) 

Report Author Colin Chick
Executive Director, Gloucestershire County Council
Email: colin.chick@gloucestershire.gov.uk 

Background 
documents

Gloucestershire County Council Road to Recovery 

Location/Contact 
for inspection of 
background 
documents

At Issue details - Gloucestershire Economic Recovery Plan 2021-24

Main Consultees This report has been produced following the last meeting of the GCC 
Transition Group.  

Purpose of report To update the Committee in respect of the County Council’s Covid-19 
economic recovery planning.

Recommendations The Committee notes the content of the paper and comments on 
progress so far. 

Reason for 
recommendations

To endorse the next phase of recovery planning for the county and 
build on the progress made in the first 9-months of the plan delivery. 
To consider the updated economic landscape as Coronavirus Job 
Retention Schemes close.
 

Resource 
Implications

There are no further resource implications. 

Page 31

Agenda Item 6

mailto:colin.chick@gloucestershire.gov.uk
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=37085&Opt=0


2

1.1 Background

This paper seeks to highlight progress against the Gloucestershire County Council 
Covid-19 economic recovery plan, and to share the latest economic growth 
dashboard as the government’s Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme comes to an 
end.  

1.2 Context

In January 2021, Cabinet approved Gloucestershire’s Road to Economic Recovery 
plan. This brought together core priorities for the local economy which would support 
its recovery. It identified the challenges expected as a result of the pandemic and set 
out actions that needed to be delivered to encourage positive outcomes. 

The three themes include: 

 People, place and connectivity – resetting how our communities interact 
with business and education 

 Skills and employment – encouraging resilience through skills and 
employment

 Infrastructure, economy and growth – accelerating infrastructure to 
promote sustainable development and growth

This plan is monitored through the Transition Group which meets on a bi-monthly 
basis.

1.3 Progress against the COVID recovery plan

Employment and Skills Hub 
The Employment and Skills Hub for the county went live in shadow form on 1st 
September with an official launch on 21st September. The hub is open to all residents 
and provides a single front door for all of the county’s offer. It draws together an offer 
across inclusive employment, adult education, and connects residents and 
businesses with job opportunities and career development.  

As at 31st July, 12,600 employments in Gloucestershire were still drawing down 
furlough payments and there were 6,200 claims against the self-employment 
scheme. In relation to employment demand, there were 36,644 job postings in 
August and reports from key sectors such as hospitality that they were not able to 
recruit a workforce with the right skills. These challenges will be addressed by the 
hub through client management, a refreshed offer and referrals to partners with an 
appropriate offer.   

Social Value
Progress against delivering social value ambitions has progressed over the past few 
months with a visioning workshop to understand what can be delivered through 
social value. There were also 2 workshops held in November to deep dive into the 
ambitions, targets and outcomes of social value and to understand the start point of 
the council.

Anticipated benefits from social value can be far reaching. They can deliver benefits 
for residents locally and encourage a localised supply chain bringing jobs and wages 

Page 32



3

to local people. The roll out of social value across council contracts is likely to take 
several months but there are opportunities to run pilot projects against large 
contracts in a learning phase. 
 
Anchor institutions
Linked to social and economic ambitions is the work focused on anchor institutions 
which has been established to address health inequalities. A set of draft principles 
have now been developed to deliver a shared understanding of what anchor 
institutions in Gloucestershire are and how they can support the local economy. 
These include:

1) Commit to target voluntary, training and employment opportunities for local 
residents, especially in underrepresented and disadvantaged communities.

2) Support staff development and career progression, targeted at groups who 
are underrepresented in senior positions.

3) Maximise the social, economic and environmental benefits to the local 
community by being a fair and ethical partner.  

4) Consider the implications for social value in all relevant decision-making 
processes.

5) Adhere to the highest ethical standards in our operations and supply 
chains. 

6) Support local community action and mutual aid groups by being an active 
community partner, focusing in areas with greater need.

7) Consult with local community groups to co-produce policy solutions.

8) Protect the local environment and minimise negative impacts on places and 
spaces. 

9) Develop culture, policies and practices that support staff health and wellbeing, 
promote healthy lifestyles and support the health and wellbeing of the 
community. 

10) Act as a positive example of ethical and effective leadership to encourage 
innovation and action across the community.

Innovation Labs
Gloucester Innovation Lab is now up and running with a lab technician in place. 
The building works in respect of the lab at Tewkesbury are underway and are 
expected to be completed within the next couple of weeks. Orders for the works to 
Stroud Innovation lab have been placed. Chipping Campden is being planned but is 
on track.

The lab technical kit has now been agreed and orders are to be placed imminently.
There has been a delay to both the recruitment of the technicians for the Stroud, 
Tewkesbury & Chipping Campden lab due to issues with Success Factors but 
Tewkesbury and Stroud posts will be advertised soon. There is additionally a delay 
with the sourcing of furniture as the procurement steps are proving challenging.

Page 33



4

2.5 Wider strategic activity to support the plan and further opportunities

The county also had three successful bids under the Levelling Up Fund. These 
include:

- Investment for Gloucester City Centre
- Gloucester Docks Sustainable Travel Improvements
- Levelling up the Future of the Forest (of Dean)

Gloucestershire has also been shortlisted as one of five sites within the STEP Fusion 
project at Berkeley and Oldbury. If successful, could deliver significant investment 
while addressing global sustainability ambitions. 

Furthermore, the county is beginning to identify opportunities that may arise through 
the future of the UK Shared Prosperity Fund. Expected to launch in 2022, the county 
is keen to ensure it has a pipeline of priorities against which partners can develop 
bids. 

Page 34



COVID19 and Economic Intelligence

November 2021

Data and Analysis Team

P
age 35



The Economy – impact of COVID-19
Claimant Count Job postings

Furlough 30 September 2021

8,500
Employments 

furloughed

3.0% 
of total 

employments

43,152
Job postings 
in Oct 2021

56.2% 
up on Feb 

2020*

Self Employment Income 
Support Scheme 5, 07 Oct 2021

10,100
Claims

30.0% 
of eligible

12,725
People claiming 
unemployment 
related benefits, 

Sep 21

3.3% 
of  16-64 
year olds,

Sep 21

Mobility

Visits to retail 
and recreation 
locations down 

2%
on baseline as at 

29/10/2021

* Please see slide 9 for details of a data quality issue affecting this measure 

P
age 36



The Economy – impact of COVID-19

NEET’S

325
16-18 year 
olds Sep 21

72,886
Working age individuals 

claiming benefits 
Feb 21

19.0% 
of 16-64 year 

olds

Total benefits

Universal Credit

43,676
People claiming 
Universal Credit, 

Sep 21

11.4% 
of 16-64 year 

olds

Apprenticeships

3,010
Apprenticeship 

starts 
Q3, 2020/21

Kickstart Gateway, 1st October 

104
Starts

216
advertised vacancies

P
age 37



Claimant Count - Unemployment
12,725

People claiming 
unemployment 
related benefits, 

Sep 21

3.3% 
of  16-64 year olds, 

Sep 21

Notes: 
Includes people claiming Jobseeker's 
Allowance plus those who claim Universal 
Credit and are searching for work.

The government's response to COVID‐19 
meant that an increasing number of people 
became eligible for unemployment‐related 
benefit support, although still employed. 

P
age 38



Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme - Furlough

8,500
Employments 
Furloughed as 

at 30/09/21

3% of employments or 
0.3 in 10 as at 30/09/21

Notes: 
Based on all claims received up to the 14th  October

Figures are based on where an individual lives

Extensions to the scheme in Nov and May saw some 
differences in eligibility. 

P
age 39



Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme - Furlough

Notes: 
Based on all claims received up to the 14th October
Figures are based on where an individual lives
Due to small numbers some sectors namely agriculture and public sector are no longer captured in the data

P
age 40



Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme - Furlough

Notes: 

Based on all claims received up to the 14th October

Figures are based on where an individual lives

Age has been calculated as at 1st May

P
age 41



Self Employment Income Support Scheme

10,100
Claims made 
to Wave 5 up 
to 07/10/21

30% of eligible cohort or 
3 in 10 as at 07/10/21

Notes: 
Based on all claims received up to the 7th October

First  scheme closed  13/07/20, covered  80%  of  average 
trading profits for 3 months

Second scheme  opened  17/08/20 covered 70%  of 
average trading profits for 3 months.

Third scheme opened  30/11/20 covered 80% of average 
trading profits, for  3 months.

Fourth scheme opened 22/04/21  some individuals who 
could claim previously unable to do so

Fifth scheme opened  29/07/2021. Two levels of grant 
based on the reduction in turnover experienced

P
age 42



Unique Active Job Postings

43,152
Unique active job 
postings, Oct 21

Notes: 
Job postings are collected from online 
sources , it doesn’t capture postings that 
are not advertised online, this might result 
in undercounting for some  occupations. 

This data shows any active posting rather 
than newly listed postings. A posting may 
be active for several months so may be 
counted in multiple months

A job postings does not necessarily result in 
a job and some jobs will be created without 
a job postings

Data is subject to change. 

Figures may differ from those presented in a 
previous month due to a data quality issue

A data quality issue has been identified which means previously some jobs outside of the 
county have been included in the Gloucestershire figures. 

This issue does not appear to have affected the overall trends but does mean previously 
circulated numbers may have overestimated the number of job postings in the county. 

We are working to resolve this issue but in the short‐term we have excluded the jobs involved, 
some of which may have correctly been assigned to Gloucestershire. This means this slide may 
now be an underestimate of the true figures but is likely to give a better estimate than those 

shared previously

P
age 43



Mobility data

Notes: 
Google collects location data shared by users of Android smartphones, and compares the visits to the 
median values on the same day of the week in the five weeks from 3 Jan 2020.

Locations measured include
• Retail & recreation ‐ restaurants, cafés, shopping centres, theme parks, museums, libraries & cinemas
• Grocery & pharmacy ‐ supermarkets, food warehouses, markets, specialty food shops and pharmacies
• Transit stations ‐ public transport hubs, such as underground, bus and train stations.
• Parks ‐ places like national parks, public beaches, marinas, dog parks, plazas and public gardens. 
• Workplaces ‐ places of work. 

Visits to retail 
and recreation 
locations down 

2%
on baseline as at 

29/10/2021

Visits to 
workplaces down

34%
on baseline as at 

29/10/2021

P
age 44



Benefits - Working Age Benefit Claimants

72,886
Working age individuals 

claiming benefits 
Feb 21

19% of 16-64 year olds 
or 1.9 in 10, Feb 21

Notes: 
This shows the number of individuals 
claiming a DWP benefit in total (i.e. only 
counting each individual claimant once 
regardless of how many different types of 
benefits they claim)

P
age 45



Universal Credit

43,676
People claiming 

Universal Credit, Sep 21 11.4% of 16-64 year olds 
or 1.14 in 10, Sep 21

Notes: 

Includes those who are searching for work and 
those who aren’t. 

• Searching for work = not working/ low earnings
• Working with requirements =  could earn more
• No work requirements = Not expected to work 

due to health or caring responsibility
• Planning for work = Expected to work in the 

future. Lone parent / carer of child aged 1
• Preparing for work = Expected to  prepare for  

work even with limited capability at present 

P
age 46



NEET’s – Not in Education Employment or 
Training

325
16-18 year olds

31st Sep 21

1.7% 
of cohort

31st Sep21
Notes: 
The NEET group includes young people actively seeking education, employment or 
training as well as those young people who are either not yet ready or who are unable to 
access these opportunities because of their personal circumstances. The figures include 
young people in both these categories.

These figures are not adjusted meaning those people aged 16‐18 whose outcomes are 
not known to Gloucestershire Youth Support Team are not taken into account

P
age 47



Apprenticeships

Notes: 

Data is for academic 
year rather calendar 
year. 

The data includes all 
funded and unfunded 
learners.

Starts are a count of the 
number of starts at any 
point in the years, 
Learners starting more 
than one apprenticeship 
will appear more than 
once.

7,680
Apprenticeship 

participation 
Q3, 2020/21

3,010
Apprenticeship 

starts 
Q3, 2020/21

P
age 48



Kickstart
Notes: 

Employers of all 
sizes can apply for  
kickstart funding 
which covers  100% 
of the  wage of the 
participant) for 25 
hours per week for 
a total of 6 months

A Kickstart gateway 
helps an employer 
get a Kickstart 
Scheme grant. 
They may also offer 
employability 
support to the 
young person on 
the scheme. 
Gloucestershire 
County Council is a 
kickstart gateway

The Kickstart Scheme provides funding to create new jobs for 16 
to 24 year olds on Universal Credit who are at risk of long term 
unemployment.

104
Through 

GCC 
gateway 

20
Employed

by GCC

Starts 
1st October 21

Vacancies
1st October 21

216advertised

52live
Through 

GCC gateway 

31advertised

1live
With 
GCC

P
age 49



Kickstart
Notes: 

Employers of all 
sizes can apply for  
kickstart funding 
which covers  100% 
of the  wage of the 
participant) for 25 
hours per week for 
a total of 6 months

A Kickstart gateway 
helps an employer 
get a Kickstart 
Scheme grant. 
They may also offer 
employability 
support to the 
young person on 
the scheme. 
Gloucestershire 
County Council is a 
kickstart gateway

This slide is based 
on total starts

The Kickstart Scheme provides funding to create new jobs for 16 to 
24 year olds on Universal Credit who are at risk of long term 
unemployment.

Sectors
Banking & Finance 

(30%)

Charity (21%) 

Creative & 
Media 
(13%) 

Healthcare
(10%)

Sport &
Leisure
(8%)

Teaching & 
Education

(8%)

Districts

P
age 50



Wider context

P
age 51



Population (Mid 2020) 
640,650

Estimated 
population of 

Gloucestershire
60.3% aged16-64 accounting 

for 386,043 people
7.3% aged18-24 accounting 

for 46,563 people

Notes: 

Population projections are trend‐based, which means they are 
based on observed levels mainly over the previous five years. 
They show what the population will be if recent trends 
continue and do not take into account policy changes.

P
age 52



Economic Activity (Jul 2020 - Jun 2021)

80.5% aged16-64 are 
economically active

76.3% aged16-64 are 
employed

19.5% aged16-64 are 
economically inactive

Notes: 

This information comes from a  
survey. In principle, many random 
samples could be drawn and each 
would give different results,. The 
error bars indicate the level of 
confidence for each value. 

The data covers a  12 month 
period rather than a snapshot . 
The latest data covers 3 months 
pre pandemic.

Economically active refers to 
those in employment or looking 
for work.

Employment captures those 
employed and those self 
employed

Economically inactive refers to 
those  who aren’t working or 
actively seeking a job, this could 
be because they are retired, 
looking after a home, unable to 
work for ill health etc. 

P
age 53



Business births and deaths (2019)

Business birth rate of 
9.96%

Business death rate of 
9.93%

61.1% of businesses 
survived for 3 years

Notes: 

An enterprise is essentially a 
business. It is generally 
located at the main  site or 
the head office. 

A business birth is based on 
new business registrations. 
The birth rate is calculated 
using the number of births as 
a proportion of the active 
businesses.

Businesses that have ceased 
to trade are referred to as 
business deaths. The death 
rate is calculated using the 
number of deaths as a 
proportion of the active 
businesses.

A business has survived if, 
having been a birth in year t 
or having survived to year t, it 
is active in terms of 
employment and/or turnover 
in any part of year t+1.

P
age 54



GVA and productivity (2019)

GVA of £18.3 billion GVA per head £28,642 GVA per hour worked 
£33.60

Notes: 

Gross Value Added (GVA) is used to measure the economic value of the goods and services produced in an area.
GVA per head relates economic value to the resident population and can be a useful way of comparing regions of different sizes.
GVA per hour worked divides GVA by the total hours worked by the workforce in the area and is often referred to as productivity.
#Data is subject to revisions 

P
age 55



Sectors – Employment (2019)
Top 3 sectors:

Health: 40,000 in 
employment or 12.9%

Manufacturing: 36,000 
in employment or 11.6%

Retail: 31,000 in 
employment or 10.0%

Notes:

Information is taken from a business 
survey, meaning it captures where 
people work rather than where they live. 
This means people who work in 
Gloucestershire but live outside of the 
county will be included but those who 
live in Gloucestershire but work 
elsewhere will be excluded. 

Figures are based on employment, 
employment includes employees plus the 
number of working owners who receive 
drawings or a share of the profits.

P
age 56



Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee - 17th November 2021

Forest of Dean Biosphere Reserve

Background

Biosphere Reserves are an international designation allocated by UNESCO. These sites 
promote solutions reconciling the conservation of biodiversity with its sustainable use. They 
are learning areas for sustainable development under diverse ecological, social and 
economic contexts, touching the lives of more than 250 million people. 

There are currently 714 biosphere reserves in 129 countries across the globe, with 7 within 
the UK, including North Devon, the Isle of Man and the Isle of Wight. 

Forest of Dean District Council (FoDDC) declared a Climate Emergency in Dec 2018 and in 
so doing became the first rural local authority to do so.  A biodiversity emergency was also 
declared in 2020 as global warming and the decline of nature are interdependent. The 
FoDDC Corporate Plan 2019-2023 includes an action to explore Biosphere Reserve 
designation for the district within the Environment Key Area of Focus.

FoDDC is working closely with Forest Economic Partnership (FEP) stakeholders and the 
wider community to test local appetite to pursue the UNESCO designation.  Support for this 
approach could set a new strategic direction and bio-economy approach for FoDDC.  New 
research will be shared with GCC, Gfirst LEP and neighbouring local authorities as we learn 
more about this subject and the issues and opportunities involved. A Forest of Dean 
Biosphere has the potential to offer an evidenced based alternative to the Glos 2050 “big 
idea” for some form of Regional Park designation for the Forest of Dean but we are only at 
the start of this journey.

Research
A voluntary team of Office for National Statistics economists worked with FEP & FoDDC to 
research the economic effects of adopting a Forest of Dean Biosphere Reserve. Using HM 
Treasury’s Green Book, their report indicates that for every £1 spent creating a Biosphere 
Reserve there would be a £3.89 value return on investment.

On the positive side, the status would protect the district’s Sites of Special Scientific Interest 
(SSSIs) and ancient monuments. It would not introduce any new sets of plans, but work with 
those already in place to drive sustainable development.

Biosphere Reserves enable the community to work together to create a shared vision for 
future developments in their area.  They encourage the wise use of human and natural 
resources, and can include education and research, where local schools are better able to 
develop workshops and universities to carry out research. There is also potential for 
community-led projects such as sustainable coppicing that promote healthy woodland 
growth. Most urgently, protected areas around the world have the potential to deliver climate 
change mitigation and adaptation, particularly through nature-based solutions. These include 
flooding mitigation using natural processes, regenerative farming and the sequestration of 
carbon in soils and the identification and protection of ecosystem services.

Page 57

Agenda Item 7



On the negative side, formal designation can constrain certain activities and have some 
negative effects. For example, constraints on built development and business expansions 
around any SSSI or which are harmful to the natural environment being protected; increase 
in local house prices and has the potential to lead to over tourism. 

Funding

Funded by Arts Council England and FoDDC, the Forest Economic Partnership is leading an 
exercise to gauge public opinion on a Forest of Dean Biosphere Reserve and to raise 
awareness for people about what it really means. 

Artists Steve Geliot & Elle Ireland were commissioned in June 2021 to produce film and 
audio artworks on the subject. This has resulted in a number of video clips and podcasts 
linked to a survey to gather public opinion.  Using Facebook, Twitter, Instagram, YouTube, 
TikTok, Vimeo and Linked-In platforms this engagement piece will run from Oct-Dec 2021 
and report findings in Feb 2022. A minimum of 430 survey responses are required by the 
Arts Council and some 460 responses have been logged in the first month. 
https://www.surveymonkey.co.uk/r/ForestWeWant

Next steps
Survey results will be analysed in the New Year and if there is demonstrable community 
support, FoDDC will be seeking to move forward with formal UNESCO designation. 

Based on the experience of other UK Biosphere Reserves, this process tends to take about 
two years to complete.  This formal application process will require some £150,000 funding 
which will be needed to commission further research to evidence the potential costs and the 
social, economic and environmental benefits of securing this designation for the Forest of 
Dean.  

Recommendations

1) Committee members to note the report,
2) Committee members to help publicise The Forest We Want Survey to increase 

awareness and participation at this important early stage.

Page 58

https://www.surveymonkey.co.uk/r/ForestWeWant


UPDATE ON STRATEGIC PLANNING IN GLOUCESTERSHIRE

Meeting GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH JOINT COMMITTEE (GEGJC)
Report Author Mike Dawson
Background 
documents

National Planning Policy Framework 2021

Location/Contact 
for inspection of 
background 
documents

N/A

Main Consultees N/A
Planned Dates N/A
Purpose of report Status of Strategic Planning in Gloucestershire

This report provides an update on the status of strategic plans that have been 
progressed by the Gloucestershire authorities and the levels of growth that 
have been identified and is being planned within them.

Recommendations To NOTE the update on the progress on strategic plan making by the 
Gloucestershire authorities, the amount of growth being planned for, and 
key delivery projects.

Reason for 
recommendations

To ensure that the committee is aware of the status of strategic planning 
across the county.

Resource 
implications

N/A

1. Introduction

1.1. Strategic Plans provide the strategic planning policies for the plan area. They set out the 
housing and employment growth requirements for their respective areas as well as 
identifying major development projects that will help to deliver them.   The local planning 
authorities in Gloucestershire have all adopted strategic plans and these include Cotswold, 
Stroud and Forest of Dean as well as Cheltenham, Gloucester City and Tewkesbury Borough 
who together have the Joint Core Strategy (JCS). Reviews of these documents are currently 
underway alongside the progression and adoption of second tier plans and supplementary 
planning documents. This paper provides an update on these plans and some of the key 
projects, as well as an update on national guidance. 

2. Stroud District Local Plan

2.1. The Stroud District Local Plan was adopted in November 2015 and covers the period from 
2006 to 2031. The plan identifies the following growth requirements: 

 Housing: 11,400 
 Employment land: 58ha
 Jobs: up to 12,500

2.2. To deliver the growth required in the adopted plan, the local plan identifies several 
strategic sites that will meet some of this housing requirement totalling 3,300 homes and a 
significant proportion of its employment land requirement totalling 52ha.

2.3. The Council has been progressing a review of the Local Plan since 2017. The reviewed plan 
will cover the period from 2020-2040. Public consultation on the Pre-Submission Plan took 

Page 59

Agenda Item 8



place in May 2021, and the Plan was submitted to the Secretary of State in October 2021.  
The growth strategy envisages delivering 12,600 new homes at a series of strategic 
locations including two new settlements. There are 79 hectares of new employment land 
proposed at a series of strategic locations. Examination and adoption of the new plan is 
anticipated in 2022.

3. Joint Core Strategy

3.1. The Gloucester, Cheltenham, and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy (JCS) was adopted in 
December 2017 and covers the period between 2011 and 2031. The plan identifies the 
following growth requirements: 

 Homes: 35,175 
 Employment land: 192ha 
 Jobs: 39,500

3.2. There are a number of strategic sites for the JCS, and these are set out in the table below 
along with a summary update of progress on these sites:

Site Homes Employment 
Land (ha)

Update

Innsworth & 
Twigworth

2,295 9.1 108 dwellings completed during the 
2020/21 monitoring year and 108 built out 
in total. 466 further dwellings which have 
planning permission which have not yet 
been constructed. 

South 
Churchdown

1,100 17.4 18 dwellings completed during the 2020/21 
monitoring year and 18 built out in total. 
437 further dwellings have planning 
permission which have not yet been 
constructed.

North 
Brockworth
(Perrybrook)

1,500 3 158 dwellings completed during the 
2020/21 monitoring year and 179 built out 
in total. 350 further dwellings have planning 
permission which have not yet been 
constructed.  Some pre-applications have 
come in for the final phases.

Northwest 
Cheltenham

4,285 23.4 Persimmon scheme for 260 units submitted 
to Cheltenham Borough Council. Revised 
Plans submitted April and further revised 
plans awaited.

Larger scheme at final stages of preparation. 
Delay linked to transport modelling. 
Working through s106 negotiations with 
planning authorities.

West 
Cheltenham

1,100 45 Golden Valley SPD adopted July 2020. 
Preferred development partner announced 

Page 60



July 2021.

Ashchurch 14.3 Construction has commenced on site for the 
garden centre and retail outlet. 

Winneycroft 620 Consents across the whole site with the site 
now providing 637 homes. Start on site 
expected before end of financial year. 

3.3. In addition to these allocations, Wychavon have agreed to provide a site in Mitton for 500 
dwellings. Ongoing negotiations have been progressing and it is expected that the planning 
application will go to committee before the end of the year. 

3.4. Delivery in the JCS area has been strong and as of 31st March 2021 total completions over 
the JCS plan period to date have totalled 14,342 dwellings: Cheltenham have delivered 
3558 delivered of their 4050 target; Gloucester City have delivered 5205 of 7180; and 
Tewkesbury have delivered 5579 out of a 4455 target (2019/2020). The adoption of the 
emerging Tewkesbury Borough Plan and Gloucester City Plan will add further to the housing 
supply of the area.

3.5. In terms of employment, the JCS allocates 112.2 ha of employment land on strategic sites. 
The Tewkesbury Borough Plan proposes to allocate a further 26.9 ha across new sites and 
carry over 43.1 ha of undeveloped capacity on sites allocated within the Local Plan to 2011. 
This equates to a total of 70ha of employment land allocated within Tewkesbury Borough 
Local Plan. In addition, a further 6 ha is allocated within the adopted Cheltenham Plan; 15.3 
ha is proposed in the submitted Gloucester Local Plan alongside an additional 16.1 ha from 
extant consents on allocations in the previous Gloucester plan, this adds an additional 37.4 
ha. 

3.6. Considering the 70 ha proposed within Tewkesbury and 37.4 in Cheltenham and Gloucester, 
107.4 ha of employment land will be provided outside of strategic allocations. Therefore, 
together with the 112.2 ha allocated on strategic sites, the JCS authorities have a total of 
219.6ha being provided over the plan period therefore meeting and exceeding the JCS 
requirement of 192ha of employment land.

3.7. Upon adoption of the JCS, the JCS was committed to an immediate review on housing 
supply for Tewkesbury Borough and Gloucester as well as a retail/town centre review for 
the whole area. With regards to new homes, the JCS identifies a housing shortfall of around 
2,400 homes for Tewkesbury Borough and around 1,000 homes for Gloucester at the time 
of adoption. In regard to retail, an immediate review is required to update an assessment of 
retails needs and to explore the allocation of strategic retail sites in accordance with a 
retail/town centre strategy. However, due to new requirements set out in the revised 
National Planning Policy Framework and to address wider delivery issues with the existing 
JCS, it is considered that this review will need be extended to be a comprehensive review of 
the plan.

3.8. To start this process the JCS Review Issues & Options consultation took place from 
November 2018 to January 2019. This consultation asked questions around all aspects of 
the review, including the extent of its scope and plan period to be addressed. The 
authorities are now in the process of gathering the evidence required to inform the 

Page 61



development of a draft JCS that will be subject to public consultation.  The timetable for this 
process is currently under review. 

3.9. Outside of the strategic allocations, each of the JCS authorities also has an identified district 
capacity which is to be met by smaller-scale allocations made through district-level plans 
that sit underneath the JCS. These plans are now at an advanced stage, with the 
Cheltenham Plan already adopted in August 2020, while the Tewkesbury Borough Plan was 
submitted for examination in May 2020 with hearings taking place in February/March this 
year, and adoption expected early 2022.  Gloucester City also submitted their Plan in 
Winter 2020, their hearings took place in May/June 2021 and adoption is also expected 
early 2022.

3.10. In terms of a five-year housing land supply and the housing delivery test: Tewkesbury has 
7.15 years supply as at April 2020 including sites allocated in Tewkesbury Borough Plan, 
and a 163% housing delivery test score; Cheltenham have a 3.9 years supply but a 191% 
housing delivery test score; and Gloucester have 5.0 years supply as confirmed by the City 
Plan Inspector and a housing delivery score of 146%.

4. Forest of Dean

4.1. The Forest of Dean Core Strategy was adopted in 2012 and covers the period from 2006 to 
2026. An Allocations plan which incorporates a full review of housing requirements and 
makes allocations accordingly was adopted in 2018. An Area Action Plan for Cinderford 
Northern Quarter was adopted in 2012.The following growth requirements are identified:
 

 Housing: 6,600
 Employment land: 68ha

The plan period runs from 2006 to 2026 and about 4246 dwellings (net) of the 20-year 
requirement of 6600 had been completed up to March 31 2021. The Council has a 3.9 years 
housing land supply, and a 94% delivery rate.

4.2. The Council have commenced work on a revised Local Plan seeking to cover the period 
2021-2041 and the current housing requirement by the standard method is 371pa or a total 
of 7420 over the period. The Plan has been through an Issues and Options consultation and 
a Preferred Options consultation.  The Preferred Options are now being reviewed by 
Members and a Draft Plan is expected late Summer/Autumn 2022.

5. Cotswolds’ District Plan

5.1. The Cotswold District Local Plan 2011-2031 was adopted in August 2018. The plan includes 
both a core strategy and site allocations. The Local Plan growth requirements are: 

 Housing: 8,400 (an average of 420 homes a year) 
 Employment land: 24ha of which 12.69ha has been delivered (March 2020)

5.2. The Local Plan allocates land within 17 Principal Settlements. Most allocations are on 
smaller scale sites. However, there is one strategic scale allocation at land south of 
Chesterton in Cirencester which was granted planning permission in April 2019 and makes a 
significant contribution towards the District’s needs, allocating 9.1 ha of employment land 

Page 62



and providing for 2,350 homes.

5.3. Cotswold District has a supply of 7.2 years of deliverable housing sites for the five-year 
period 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2026. The District also passes the Housing Delivery Test 
with a score of 163%.

5.4. The District has had 5582 (March 2021) dwellings completed between April 2011 and 
March 2021. 

5.5. The Local Plan review is underway with a Regulation 18 consultation expected in January 
2022.

6. Gloucestershire County Council

6.1. The table below provides an update on the County Council’s Strategic Documents and their 
review

Area Name of Plan Date Adopted / 
approved

Review 
Underway

Expected 
completion date

Minerals Local 
Plan for 
Gloucestershire

Development Plan 
Document

Mar 2020 Statutory review 
required 

Mar 2025

Gloucestershire 
Waste Core 
Strategy

Development Plan 
Document

Nov 2012

Gloucestershire 
Waste Local Plan

Development Plan 
Document – only 
specific ‘saved’ 
policies remain 
part of the 
statutory 
development plan 

Oct 2004

Review 
completed late 
2020. 

New Waste Local 
Plan for 
Gloucestershire: 

Adoption by late 
2024.

Gloucestershire 
Waste 
Minimisation in 
Development 
Projects 
Supplementary 
Planning 
Document (SPD)

Local 
Development 
Document

Sept 2006 Review 
completed late 
2020. 

Adoption by late 
2024.

Development 
Contributions

Gloucestershire’s 
Local 
Development 

March 21 No -

Page 63



Guide 2021

Transport Gloucestershire 
Local Transport 
Plan (2020-2041)

March 21 No -

Transport Central Severn 
vale Local Cycling 
and Walking 
Investment Plan 
(LCWIP)

2018 No – but separate 
plan for 
Tewkesbury is 
being produced

-

Transport Bus Service 
Improvement Plan

October 21 No -

Flood Risk 
Management

Local Flood Risk 
Management 
Strategy

Summer 2014 Yes 2022/23 – 
2023/24

Flood Risk 
Management

Strategic Flood 
Risk Assessment 
(Level 1)

September 2008 Yes 2022/23 – 
2023/24 

Education Gloucestershire 
School Places 
Strategy (2021-
2026)

March 21 No -

Education SEND 
Commissioning 
Strategy

January 2020 No -

Library Services Strategy for 
Library Services

2012 Yes 2022

Health Joint Health and 
Wellbeing 
Strategy (2019-
2030)

September 2019 No

7. Key Delivery Projects

7.1. An update on the key strategic planning projects in Gloucestershire is set out below.

7.2. M5 Junction 10 

The M5 junction 10 Improvements Scheme is a proposal to provide a strategic transport 
intervention to unlock housing identified within safeguarded and strategic housing 
allocations to the West and Northwest of Cheltenham. The scheme comprises of the 
upgrade of the existing M5 junction 10 near Cheltenham to an all movements junction 
and also includes capacity enhancements to the A4019 east of Junction 10, a new West 

Page 64



Cheltenham Link Road connecting the A4019 to the strategic housing allocation at West 
Cheltenham and remote, but associated, upgrades to Arle Court Park and Ride to create a 
new Arle Court Transport Hub and improvement works to the Coombe Hill junction on 
the A38 west of M5 junction 10.

The scheme has secured funding and subsequently made a Preferred Route 
Announcement in June this year, work is now progressing on the preliminary design and 
associated assessments and evidence base to enable a statutory public consultation from 
December 2021 to February 2022. Thereafter the scheme will require planning 
permissions for the works at Arle Court and Coombe Hill together with a Development 
Consent Order for the junction 10 works (also including the West Cheltenham Link Road 
and A4019 capacity enhancements). It is currently anticipated that the necessary 
permissions will be in place to enable construction to commence in 2024 with planned 
completion during 2025. 

More information can be found here: 

M5 Junction 10 Improvements Scheme - Highways (gloucestershire.gov.uk)

7.3. M5 Junction 9/A46

The M5 junction 9 and A46 (Ashchurch) Transport Scheme is a proposal to upgrade the 
M5 junction 9 near Tewkesbury and re-route the section of the A46 which currently 
passes through Ashchurch to the east of the M5 (between M5 junction 9 and Teddington 
Hands roundabout).  

Options are currently being considered for a new dual carriageway between the M5 near 
Tewkesbury and Teddington Hands roundabout and associated works to M5 junction 9, 
thereby removing significant volumes of traffic from the A46 through Ashchurch and 
enabling this existing section to better cater for local traffic movements between 
Tewkesbury and Ashchurch.

Gloucestershire County Council has applied to the Department for Transport’s Large Local 
Majors Fund (LLM) funding and received approval of the first stage of the scheme 
development in March 2020, with an approved Pre-Strategic Outline Business Case. Work 
continues on the scheme and it is expected that a public consultation event will be held 
in 2022.  

More information can be found here:  
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/highways/major-projects-list/m5-junction-9-and-
a46-ashchurch-transport-scheme/

7.4. A417 Missing Link

The A417/A419 provides an important route between Gloucester, Cheltenham and 
Swindon that helps connect the West Midlands and the north to the south of England via 
the M5 and M4 motorways. While most of the A417 route is dual carriageway, there is 
one section that isn’t. Known as the Missing Link, this three-mile stretch of single 
carriageway between the Brockworth bypass and Cowley roundabout severely restricts 
the flow of traffic.

Page 65

https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fwww.gloucestershire.gov.uk%2fhighways%2fmajor-projects-list%2fm5-junction-10-improvements-scheme%2f&c=E,1,lFiNspeizob9qBu7xIiqk2SYDIVQEK64CmpXDc7pH20G-kc6gAFHKW6AMc6iyXacwr2NhUZYCzjQ__hOvql49LFvexhJNEravWvF0vUmhK-E8g,,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fwww.gloucestershire.gov.uk%2fhighways%2fmajor-projects-list%2fm5-junction-9-and-a46-ashchurch-transport-scheme%2f&c=E,1,Nuz1Sv8ZaW33F2GpJlnZW9ej8UE2Rj5q7nM79sbi1AwwpS6wKc1Kug7sZ_ZkEP8PjUiJfKjnZfzdMGC598MgOkIwTL3tVi6Sd-BGmufMyXVF&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fwww.gloucestershire.gov.uk%2fhighways%2fmajor-projects-list%2fm5-junction-9-and-a46-ashchurch-transport-scheme%2f&c=E,1,Nuz1Sv8ZaW33F2GpJlnZW9ej8UE2Rj5q7nM79sbi1AwwpS6wKc1Kug7sZ_ZkEP8PjUiJfKjnZfzdMGC598MgOkIwTL3tVi6Sd-BGmufMyXVF&typo=1


National Highways (formerly Highways England) plan to build 3.4 miles (5.5km) of new 
dual carriageway, which will considerably improve road safety, reduce traffic congestion 
and improve connectivity for road users and local communities, while unlocking 
economic growth in Gloucestershire and beyond. National Highways has submitted the 
planning application for the scheme to the Planning Inspectorate, and the Examination in 
Public is likely to commence in November.  If the planning application is approved work 
could start on the construction of the scheme early in 2023. 

More information can be found here: https://highwaysengland.co.uk/our-work/south-
west/a417-missing-link/

7.5. Northwest Cheltenham Strategic Allocation

A planning application for Northwest Cheltenham has been submitted jointly to 
Tewkesbury and Cheltenham Borough Councils. The councils are working closely with the 
developers and infrastructure providers to progress the application to ensure the timely 
delivery of development. Transport infrastructure is a key component of these 
discussions and how the traffic impact of the site is managed and the development of this 
site, as with Northwest Cheltenham, is linked to future improvement of M5 J10.

7.6. Golden Valley Development

Known as the Golden Valley Development, the West Cheltenham strategic allocation site 
was identified in the JCS to deliver 1,100 homes and 45ha of employment land. 
Cheltenham Borough and Tewkesbury Borough Councils adopted the Golden Valley 
Development Supplementary Planning Document in July 2020 to help to promote and 
steer the future development of the strategic allocation. 

The GFirst LEP, Cheltenham Borough Council, Gloucestershire County Council and 
Cheltenham Development Taskforce have been working on the development of a ‘cyber 
hub’ as part of the West Cheltenham strategic allocation. Through this work a successful 
bid was made for £22m funding to help deliver the development of the cyber hub, and a 
preferred development partner was announced in July 2021. 

Transport infrastructure is again a key component of these discussions and how the 
traffic impact of the site is managed. The development of this site, as with North West 
Cheltenham, is linked to future improvement of M5 J10.

7.7. Tewkesbury Garden Town

Tewkesbury Borough Council was awarded Garden Town status in 2019 based upon a 
potential development of 10,195 homes and approximately 100 hectares of employment 
land. The Garden Town will be supported by infrastructure including roads, schools, and 
green space to meet the community needs through excellent ‘place making’. 

Work continues on the evolution of the Concept Plan which was noted by Tewkesbury 
Borough Executive Committee in October. This document has no planning status 
currently, but the Garden Town is intended to be formally consulted on though the JCS 
Review process.

Page 66

https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fhighwaysengland.co.uk%2four-work%2fsouth-west%2fa417-missing-link%2f&c=E,1,6-uoBt8BMakattqm1-CMcEBOqus2Vebyi-Lwt4J3zpZZJ9iL7GFj2DRfNYPQBwqd_zGr5xIoN9A5pidl09sVdr0IpQReeiWnMqFAbonzFabvr_R6g_Vv-lc,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fhighwaysengland.co.uk%2four-work%2fsouth-west%2fa417-missing-link%2f&c=E,1,6-uoBt8BMakattqm1-CMcEBOqus2Vebyi-Lwt4J3zpZZJ9iL7GFj2DRfNYPQBwqd_zGr5xIoN9A5pidl09sVdr0IpQReeiWnMqFAbonzFabvr_R6g_Vv-lc,&typo=1


As part of the master planning process, nine founding development principles have been 
created, drawing on inspiration from the long-established Garden City Movement and UK 
Garden Communities Model of Development, the adopted Joint Core Strategy for 
Cheltenham, Gloucester and Tewkesbury (JCS) and stakeholder engagement events held 
throughout 2019. These principles will act as an important blueprint for all decision 
making as the Tewkesbury Garden Town evolves.

MHCLG (now DLUHC) has awarded the Borough Council funding through its New 
Development Corporation Competition - to progress the exploration of an appropriate 
delivery vehicle to oversee the completion of this major development. This workstream is 
in progress and the Tewkesbury Garden Town team are currently procuring this work.

To support planned development appropriately, early infrastructure delivery is underway, 
including a new bridge over the railway line at Northway based upon the award of £8.1 
million from the Housing Infrastructure Fund (HIF). The planning application has been 
approved and the next phase underway includes detailed design and the selection of a 
construction partner, in due course.

7.8. Strategic Site south of Chesterton, Cirencester

Land to the south of Chesterton, Cirencester was granted outline planning permission in 
April 2019 for, amongst other things, up to 2,350 dwellings (including up to 100 units of 
student accommodation and 60 homes for the elderly), along with 9.1 hectares of 
employment land (B1, B2 and B8 uses).  It is currently anticipated that around 1,550 
dwellings will be completed during the plan period with the remainder coming forward 
after 2031. Reserved matters was granted for this application  in October 2021.

7.9. Cinderford Northern Quarter

This is a mixed use regeneration scheme and includes housing and employment 
allocations.  A new FE college has been completed served by a new road which will 
enable further mixed development.  Previously, as part of the Cinderford Regeneration 
Project, Forest of Dean District Council, Two Rivers Housing and Kier Partnership Homes 
Limited worked together on the redevelopment of the Valley Road site. The scheme was 
for a total of 92 houses, of which 55 were open market homes and 37 were affordable 
homes.  The project had a total cost of approximately £20m with not-for-profit Two 
Rivers investing £3m into the project, for the provision of the 37 affordable units.

7.10. Lydney Harbour Regeneration

A comprehensive scheme to safeguard and protect the docks and harbour and realise 
their full potential whilst supporting a major private sector investment for which a 
planning application is due shortly. It is centred on a former factory and will provide jobs 
and a recreational/ tourism opportunity.

7.11. West of Stonehouse Strategic Allocation

Outline planning permission for 1,350 dwellings, local centre and 10 hectares of 
employment land was granted in April 2016. Reserved matters were approved in May 
2017 for infrastructure to serve Phase 1. Developers were on site in September 2017. 
Redrow and Barratt Homes/David Wilson Homes are delivering the first housing phases. 

Page 67



Parcel H21 is under construction with 82 completed as at April 2021. Parcels H16 and H19 
reserved matters have been approved. The delivery of employment parcels is linked to 
progress with initial housing phases to ensure balanced growth of homes and jobs. The 
implementation of phases is being managed via area masterplans.

7.12. Hunts Grove Extension/Quedgeley East Strategic Allocations

A renegotiated outline permission for Hunts Grove was granted in July 2016 for 1,750 
dwellings, a school and local centre. 339 dwellings have been completed just in the 
monitoring year 2020/21 on a variety of land parcels. Crest Nicholson will oversee 
delivery as the main developer with partner developers building out sub areas within the 
masterplan. An outline permission for 25 hectares of employment land at Quedgeley East 
was granted in November 2018 subject to delivering M5 J12 improvements and is now 
under construction. Highway capacity issues remain at M5 J12 in the adopted and 
emerging Local Plans and the accompanying evidence base.

8. Gloucestershire Statement of Common Ground

8.1. Since the previous report, work on the Gloucestershire Statement of Common Ground 
has been on-going including consultation with Leaders of all Councils with the aim of 
securing sign off on the agreement. Whilst work has progressed well with many areas 
agreed, there are some areas where agreement from all Councils has not been possible. 
 Work is now underway to set these areas out and these will be included within an 
appendix to the Statement of Common Ground, as areas not agreed upon. 

9. National Planning Matters Update

9.1. In September, the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government was changed 
to the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities, with the Government’s 
central aim of levelling up every part of the Country and building back better after the 
pandemic. 
 

9.2. Further developments on the Planning White Paper are yet to materialise. However, it is 
expected that much of what was set out in that Paper will be ‘watered down’ or 
disbanded altogether.

9.3. On July 21st the government launched a new Office for Place with the aim to support 
councils and communities to develop user friendly, effective design codes. The 
government “aims to shift an industry culture to a point where mediocrity is no longer 
proposed or accepted.”1 At the moment the Office for Place will focus on pilot projects. 
The launch of the Office for Place came alongside changes to the NPPF and the 
publication of a new National Model Design Code with the intention to make ‘beauty’ 
central to the planning system. 

9.4. Changes to the NPPF have been made to incorporate the National Model Design Code 
and some of its themes into the planning system. For example, there is now a 
requirement for all new streets to be tree lined2 (“unless, in specific cases, there are clear, 

1 The Rt Hon Robert Jenrick MP https://www.gov.uk/government/speeches/office-for-place-launch  
2 Para 131, NPPF, July 2021

Page 68

https://www.gov.uk/government/speeches/office-for-place-launch


justifiable and compelling reasons why this would be inappropriate”), and the social 
objective of the planning system has been expanded to include the word “beautiful”3. 

9.5. The NPPF sets out that to carry weight in decision-making design codes should be 
prepared either as part of plan making or as supplementary planning document. 
Landowners and developers can contribute and may choose to prepare a code to support 
their application. Regardless of whoever prepares them, they need to be based on 
effective community engagement and reflect local aspirations. Where there is no local 
code the National Design Guide and the National Model Design Code will be used. 4

9.6. The changes to the NPPF also seek to improve design quality by allowing LPAs to refuse 
development that is not well designed, “especially where it fails to reflect local design 
policies and government guidance on design, taking into account any local design 
guidance and supplementary planning documents such as design guides and codes.”5 

9.7. Conversely developments that reflect local design policies, guides and codes, and the 
government guidance on design are to be given significant weight.6 

9.8. A new paragraph 128 states that in order to "provide maximum clarity about design 
expectations at an early stage", all local planning authorities "should prepare design 
guides or codes consistent with the principles set out in the National Design Guide and 
National Model Design Code, and which reflect local character and design preferences". 

9.9. Other changes to improve design include requiring LPAs to seek to ensure that quality is 
not diminished between planning permission and completion7.  This relates to materials, 
or the more interesting elements of the architectural appearance, that can sometimes be 
diluted post permission through amendments or the discharging of conditions.  

9.10. In terms of strategic sites, policies for large scale developments such as new settlements 
or significant extensions to existing villages and towns now need to be set within a 30-
year vision. This only applies to plans that have not reached Regulation 19 (pre-
submission) stage on 20th July 2021. 

9.11. The previous NPPF’s presumption in favour of sustainable development has been 
expanded to provide more emphasis on upfront delivery of infrastructure and has placed 
more importance on adapting to and mitigating the effects of climate change:  "all plans 
should promote a sustainable pattern of development that seeks to: meet the 
development needs of their area; align growth and infrastructure; improve the 
environment; mitigate climate change (including by making effective use of land in urban 
areas) and adapt to its effects”. 

9.12. Another change seeks to bring clarity to how councils use Article 4 directions to remove 
national permitted development rights. The intention is to stop councils using an Article 4 
to prevent the conversion of non-residential uses into residential uses in a blanket 
fashion. Article 4s can still be used for this purpose if they are preventing “wholly 

3 Para 8b, NPPF, July 2021
4 Para 129, NPPF, July 2021
5 Para 134, NPPF, July 2021
6 Para 134, NPPF, July 2021
7 Para 135, NPPF, July 2021

Page 69



unacceptable adverse impacts” and are “based on robust evidence and apply to the 
smallest geographical area possible.”8 The NPPF sets out that this could apply to a 
primary shopping area but would be very unlikely to apply to a whole town centre. 

9.13. With regard to historic statues the NPPF provides that Councils should 'retain and explain' 
statues rather than remove them. New paragraph 198 states: “In considering any 
applications to remove or alter a historic statue, plaque, memorial or monument 
(whether listed or not), local planning authorities should have regard to the importance 
of their retention in situ and, where appropriate, of explaining their historic and social 
context rather than removal." 

9.14. There is more emphasis ensuring infrastructure needs are aligned with growth. A new 
paragraph states: "To ensure faster delivery of other public service infrastructure such as 
further education colleges, hospitals and criminal justice accommodation, local planning 
authorities should also work proactively and positively with promoters, delivery partners 
and statutory bodies to plan for required facilities and resolve key planning issues before 
applications are submitted."9 

9.15. The reference to Building for Life has been removed and replaced with an updated design 
toolkit called Building for a Healthy Life10 which is endorsed by Homes England, the Home 
Builders Federations, and the Urban Design Group. 

9.16. There is a new emphasis on protecting not only the AONB but also its setting, stating that 
‘development within their setting should be sensitively located and designed to avoid or 
minimize adverse impacts on the designated areas’. Further, there is a presumption 
against major development in such areas.

9.17. Obviously, all these changes will need to be taken account of in the review of Local Plans, 
and any further changes as a result of the planning reforms will also need to be 
considered. However, planning reforms are currently on hold as the new department of 
Levelling Up, Housing and Communities is focusing its agenda on ‘levelling up’. So, it 
remains to be seen as to when any changes will be put forward and how this will affect 
the development of Gloucestershire’s local plans. 

8 Para 53, NPPF, July 2021
9 Para 96, NPP,F July 2021
10 Building for a Healthy Life 
https://www.udg.org.uk/sites/default/files/publications/files/14JULY20%20BFL%202020%20Brochure_3.pdf 

Page 70

https://www.udg.org.uk/sites/default/files/publications/files/14JULY20%20BFL%202020%20Brochure_3.pdf


GFirst LEP Update for GEGJC meeting 17th November, 2021
Prepared by Dev Chakraborty (Deputy Chief Executive GFirst LEP)

1) GFirst LEP Capital Projects update – to October 31st, 2021

Getting Building Fund

GFirst LEP successfully bid for £11.3 million from the Government’s ‘Getting Building Fund’. 
This will fund the five ‘shovel ready’ projects outlined below creating 818 new jobs and 
safeguarding a further 43. 
The projects will assist 960 businesses and a further £4.875million will be leveraged from 
both the public and private sector.

 The Minster Exchange with Cheltenham Borough Council – the contractors have 
now taken possession of the site and have started marking out and preparation of 
the site. The project has also now submitted a planning application for the Minster 
grounds and public realm works. Delivery of modular units to site to start in 
November 2021. Project confident to complete build in April 2022.

 AccXel Construction Skills Accelerator Centre with KW Bell in Cinderford – work 
progressing well on site, approaching completion with final internal fit-out now 
underway. An opening event has been arranged for December 9th 2021 with a view 
to being fully operational in January 2022.

 Applied Digital Skills Centre with Cirencester College – construction work is 
progressing well, on track to open in January 2022. 

 Cyber Incubator Units at Gloucestershire College, Cheltenham – a ‘soft’ opening 
event was held on 23rd September and the centre is now fully open. The Secretary of 
State for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities, The Rt Hon Michael Gove MP, 
visited Gloucestershire College’s Cheltenham Campus in mid October.

Page 71

Agenda Item 9



 ‘The Digital Innovation Farm’ with Hartpury University – Ground has now been 
broken on site and modular units are in final design with delivery scheduled for 
January 2022.

Local Growth Fund

 Gloucester Railway Station – GRIP 4 design now complete, invitation to tender for 
the construction work to be issued w/c 4-10-21, with a return date 25th November. 
Contract award now expected in January 2022 with work on site likely to start March 
2022. Planned completion of works now Dec 2022. Currently fully costed programme 
estimate (with risks and contingency) indicates a budget shortfall, but will be 
reviewed on receipt of tenders. 

 Gloucestershire Airport Anson Park – contract has now been let for the construction 
works, work on site expected to start in November. There has been a slight delay as 
the Airport Board wanted to review the operational plan related to the runway 
refurbishment project and the phasing with the Anson Park project. 

 Gloucester SW Bypass – land acquisitions now completed. Revised planning 
application also expected to be determined by end of October. Demolition expected 
to start late 2021 with highways work starting in early 2022.

 A40 Innsworth Gateway – construction progressing on site, main Eastbound 
carriageway diversion expected October 2021 onto new roundabout. Completion 
expected January 2022. Final claim has now been made and approved for LGF funds.

 West Cheltenham Transport Scheme – Phases 3 & 4 due to complete March 2022.  
A forecast underspend of c£1.7m on the main WCTIS scheme is being re-allocated to 
support delivery of the Walking and Cycling infrastructure along the B4063 to the 
Staverton M5 bridge. Work to run in parallel with main scheme with completion 
forecast March 2022.

For further more detailed information on any of these projects please go to GFirst LEP’s 
website; http://www.gfirstlep.com/projects/

Page 72

http://www.gfirstlep.com/projects/


2) Official opening of the Forest of Dean Growth Hub – October 8th, 2021 

Special guests and local businesses raised a glass at the official opening to celebrate an 
invaluable new resource for the Forest of Dean.

Local MP, Mark Harper was joined by Chief Executive of GFirst LEP, David Owen, and 
Managing Director of BMJ International Ltd, Kevan Spencer, to officially open the new site 
with the cutting of a ribbon. 

The Forest of Dean is the latest location to join The Growth Hub Network, a GFirst LEP 
flagship project, which includes Gloucester, Cheltenham, Tewkesbury, Stroud and 
Cirencester. Located at Vantage Point Business Village in Mitcheldean, The Growth Hub, 
Forest of Dean is the first port of call for local businesses looking to grow.

The aim of The Growth Hub is to break down barriers to growth with experts on-hand to 
consult, connect and collaborate. Offering bespoke business support through one-to-one 
sessions, sector-specific events run by local experts, workshops and networking 
opportunities, there’s something for all Gloucestershire SMEs. Business Navigators and 
Guides will listen to priorities and challenges in order to offer solutions to help businesses 
develop and grow.

As well as offering free business support and events, The Growth Hub, Forest of Dean boasts 
an impressive modern workspace. The new Growth Hub is home to spaces for incubation 
offices, co-working, hot desking and breakout areas, providing the ideal base for SMEs of all 
sizes. Work from The Growth Hub, Forest of Dean from as little as £15 with a range of 
memberships suited to those looking for more permanent workspace solutions. 

Designed to serve the needs of the local business community, The Growth Hub, Forest of 
Dean invites all Gloucestershire SMEs to take advantage of the knowledge, advice and 
tailored services available, and join the 26,000 other growing businesses in the county who 
are adding to the sustainable growth of Gloucestershire’s economy. 

All Gloucestershire SMEs are invited to visit and see first-hand how The Growth Hub, Forest 
of Dean can inspire you and contribute to your business’ success.

If you wish to find out more, please either drop in, call 01594 546661, email: 
forestofdean@thegrowthhub.biz or visit: www.thegrowthhub.biz/forestofdean. 

Page 73

tel:01594%20546661
mailto:forestofdean@thegrowthhub.biz
http://www.thegrowthhub.biz/forestofdean


Page 74



3) Official opening of the Stroud Growth Hub – October 22nd, 2021

After a lengthy delay of nearly two years due to the global pandemic, The Growth Hub, 
Stroud is delighted to finally celebrate their official opening.

The original launch event was planned for March 2020, but the lockdown scuppered the 
celebration plans. Undeterred, The Growth Hub, Stroud has been providing online support 
for businesses throughout the pandemic and with the easing of restrictions, is delighted to 
now welcome businesses through their doors.

With local MP, Siobhan Baillie leading the proceedings, special guests and local businesses 
attended the event to mark the launch of the go-to place to receive free business support, 
network, attend workshops, or simply escape the isolation of working from home.

Stroud and the surrounding areas have a proud history of producing successful businesses 
and displaying entrepreneurial spirit, however, with the uncertainty that Covid-19 and 
Brexit have presented, the need for a trusted and knowledgeable support hub for 
businesses is more crucial now and then ever before. 

Being flexible, innovative and embracing technology are key attributes of modern business 
and The Growth Hub, Stroud aims to support employers to do this by:

 delivering assured support that meets the specific needs of the local district business 
environment that is sector specific, responding to known and emerging needs

 supporting people to reach their potential through skills development  
 supporting and strengthening the local business community through increased routes 

to market and increased networking opportunities
 providing an innovation base for businesses to work from including private offices, 

co-working space and a large meeting room available for hire

Additionally, by being based in an educational setting The Growth Hub, Stroud is ideally 
placed to raise standards across the county in employability skills and qualifications and to 
provide alignment between education and business.

Working as part of the Gloucestershire Growth Hub Network, this investment will bring 
business support closer to the companies of the Stroud District and a local base they can 
turn to for growth. 

The Growth Hub at SGS Stroud is open for business so if you wish to find out more, please 
either drop in, call 01453 761184, email: stroud@thegrowthhub.biz.or visit: 
www.thegrowthhub.biz/stroud. 

Page 75

mailto:stroud@thegrowthhub.biz
https://www.thegrowthhub.biz/stroud


Page 76



4) Made in Gloucestershire initiative

Concept;

GFirst LEP working in partnership with Gloucestershire County Council are considering 
launching a ‘Made in Gloucestershire’ initiative – the scheme would enable businesses and 
traders to advertise to consumers that they supply Gloucestershire sourced products, and 
that those claims have been thoroughly vetted, checked and certified by Trading Standards 
Officers.

On the back of the Covid-19 pandemic we think that this could be another positive element 
of the recovery planning for the county. We also feel it would help Gloucestershire’s 
businesses stand out from the crowd by building on their reputation for producing quality, 
locally made goods.

A working group has been set up with an inaugural meeting held at the end of September. 
Organisations represented on the group include; NFU, Mid Counties Co-Op, Gloucester 
Services/Westmoreland, FSB, The Growth Hub, Visit Gloucestershire, Cheltenham Chamber 
of Commerce, Hartpury University and MayBe*.

- The initiative was supported and welcomed by all parties.
- Good for recovery planning for the county but also good for Inward Investment 

activity.
- Similar scheme ‘Made in Northumberland’ - initial costings from Northumberland: 

£45k to launch followed by membership fees ranging from £60 to £250 per year 
based on size of business. The team at ‘Made in Northumberland’ have offered 
support to other regions to help set up similar schemes. 

- Keen to launch ‘Made in Gloucestershire’ at no cost to the businesses who sign up, 
at least for the first year.

- Need to have a clear criteria on what 'Made in Gloucestershire' means otherwise it 
becomes difficult to monitor. 

- ‘Made in Gloucestershire in the heart of the Cotswolds’.
- What does success look like? Having the brand well known across the whole country, 

brand ambassador(s), aim for 50 or 100 businesses to be signed up in first year?
- Need to create a sense of place with the brand. Could this sit alongside / within Visit 

Gloucestershire?
- There are several farmers who would be interested in the concept, especially now as 

there are more of them selling 'at the gate'.

Next steps;

- Establish a budget
- Agree timeline
- Come up with elevator pitch

Page 77



- Why should businesses / communities / individuals buy into it? What would be the 
membership benefits? 

- Identify and critically analyse range of businesses initially interested.
- Get GCC buy-in re support from Trading Standards team/provenance.
- Steering group to define concept: funding, who to manage, key ambassadors 
- Think about other sectors that could be involved eg advanced manufacturing, 

engineering, energy etc

The second meeting will be held at the end of November.
 

 

Page 78



5) Inward Investment project – Invest in Gloucestershire

This is the collaborative initiative working in partnership with the County Council and the six 

District Councils supported by ERDF European funding. The dedicated team focus on inward 

investment in the county, in particular (non- EU) foreign direct investment.

The overall project value is £1 million with 50% coming via ERDF and runs for a period of 4 
years – January 2019 to December 2022.

The focus is on four key sectors; Cyber, Agri-Tech, Advanced Engineering & Manufacturing & 
Renewables.

Recent developments;

i) Cyber High Potential Opportunity - A High Potential Opportunity (HPO) scheme, 
co-ordinated by the Department for International Trade (DiT), identifies opportunities to 
attract foreign direct investment into emerging sectors, regions and clusters – creating new 
jobs and growth. 
When completed, the presentation will be shared across the globe by DiT and draw on 
Government international marketing of the unique capability in Gloucestershire. This will 
bring investment, interest and also help the existing cyber sector to grow.  

Stakeholders across the county including Cheltenham Borough Council, GCHQ and GFirst 
LEP have been working on a Cyber HPO for the county for a number of months and this 
should be launched prior to Christmas.

ii) Advanced Manufacturing Proposition – the Inward Investment team are working closely 
with Rob Loveday (ex GE Aviation and GFirst LEP Board member, currently working with DiT) 
to produce a proposition for the Advanced Manufacturing sector. 
As well as being featured on the Invest in Gloucestershire website 
(https://www.investingloucestershire.com/) it will be taken to various international trade 
events to promote the strength of the sector in Gloucestershire and the surrounding area.

iii) Collaboration across the county’s Agri-tech sector – following on from proposals raised 
in the LEP’s Local Industrial Strategy, the Inward Investment team convened the key players 
from the Agri-tech sector in Gloucestershire to discuss further collaboration. 
Hartpury University and Hartpury College, The Royal Agricultural University and Farm 491 
and Campden BRI were all present.

The group has agreed to collaborate on a promotional video for the sector that will be 
funded by the LEP’s Inward Investment project. They will also look to have a shared 
attendance at key international Agri-events such as Agritechnica in Hanover. They will also 
consider a collective annual event such as a conference or an Agri-season which can form a 
series of events/webinars located at key assets in the county.

Page 79

https://www.investingloucestershire.com/


Page 80



Gloucestershire Business Rates Pool Update AGENDA NO: 

Meeting Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee, Nov 2021

Report author Andrew Cummings – Strategic Director of Resources
Stroud District Council
Email: andrew.cummings@stroud.gov.uk

Background 
documents

Report to GEGJC September 2021

Location/Contact 
for inspection of 
background 
documents

N/A 

Main consultees Gloucestershire Chief Financial Officers

Planned dates N/A

Purpose of report 1. To consider the anticipated position of the pool and SEDF balance for 
2021/22

Recommendations
The Committee:
1. Note the forecast position of the Business Rates Pool and estimated 

balance for the SEDF in 2021/22

Reasons for 
recommendations

To update the Committee on the forecast for the Business Rates Pool, and 
the likelihood of the Pool continuing into future years

Resource 
Implications

There are no resource implications to implementing this recommendation.  

Page 81

Agenda Item 10

mailto:andrew.cummings@stroud.gov.uk


Background 
1. Gloucestershire continues to operate a business rates pool under the 50% rates 

retention system.  This pooling generates a saving in the levy returned to Central 
Government which is then distributed amongst Gloucestershire authorities.

2. The last update report to this Committee predicted that there would be a gain from the 
pool to the Strategic Economic Development Fund (SEDF) of £848k in 2021/22 as part 
of a total benefit from pooling of £4.238 million.

2021/22 Forecasts
3. As in previous years District Councils are carrying out monitoring of the in-year 

business rates position. This monitoring has been brought together to develop an 
estimated position for the Pool in this report.

4. The Covid pandemic clearly continues to have an impact upon businesses in the 
County and all Districts are closely monitoring income collected. As previously reported, 
many businesses still have pandemic related rates relief in this financial year. This is 
fully compensated to Councils by Central Government meaning there is no impact on 
the pool position.

5. The position in the second quarter has been broadly stable across the County. Bringing 
together the position from all of the Districts has seen the estimated pool gain reducing 
slightly to £4.027 million. This would lead to a SEDF allocation of £804k and other 
distribution as set out in the table below.

Table 1 – Estimated Pool Gain in 2021/22

Distribution
21/22 
Forecast

Strategic Economic Development Fund (as administered 
by GEGJC) £804k

District Councils £2.58m
County Council £643k
Total Pool Gain £4.027m

6. This gain is obviously subject to significant potential fluctuation and therefore should not 
be factored into any resource allocation decisions at this point.

7. The pool gain of £3.6 million for 2020/21, as reported to the previous committee, has 
not yet been confirmed in final reconciliations by DLUHC. This is expected later in this 
financial year.

8. The funding bid being considered by this committee has not been included in the 
expenditure figures at this stage. If approved, the allocation of £65k for investigating a 
range of transport solutions and options to better connect Kemble Train Station to 

Page 82



Cirencester Town Centre will be included within the listed allocations at Appendix A for 
the next update report.

Future of the Business Rates Pool

9. The Spending Review announced on October 27th of this year gave no clear statement 
on the future of Business Rates Pooling. However, it seems clear that there will be no 
reset of business rates growth in 2022/23 and potentially not for the three-year 
spending review period.  More details are hoped for in the Provisional Local 
Government Settlement, expected in December.

10.As pooling is now likely next year, an allocation of pooling growth to the SEDF in 
2022/23 has now been included as an indicative figure. This should not be used for 
resourcing decisions at this stage but reflects the likely impact of an additional year of 
pool growth.

11.The spending review also included a freeze in business rate increases and further 
reliefs for businesses in the retail, leisure and hospitality sectors. As in previous years 
these will be fully grant funded by Central Government and therefore no impact on the 
pool is expected.

Risk Assessment
12.Significant risks remain around the level of business rates income and arrears in the 

pandemic recovery. This is mitigated by the current high level of estimated pool gain 
which is likely to be enough to absorb any future reductions in rates income without 
putting the pool into deficit.

Officer Advice
13. No officer advice required

Equalities considerations
14. There are no equalities considerations associated with this decision. It is purely a 
       financial consideration.

Consultation feedback
15.  Each of the Business Rates Pool members has been consulted about this report.

Performance Management/follow-up
16. Further update reports on the current position and future outlook of the pool will be 
presented to this committee.

Page 83



Appendix A
Projected Balance of the SEDF

GEGJC 
Decision 
Date

2018/19
(£’000)

2019/20
(£’000)

2020/21
(£’000)

2021/22
(£’000)

2022/23
(£’000)

Item 

Funding
SEDF Balance b/f
2017/18 Pool (confirmed)
2018/19 Pilot Gain (confirmed)
Pool Gain (indicative)
SEDF Funding

Allocations
Operating Costs for Joint 
Committee
LEP Core Funding (Match)

LEP/LA Inward Investment 
Programme (EU Match)

J.10 Business Case Commission 
(contribution)

Economic Intelligence Data
Commissioning Fund

Rail Investment Strategy 

LNP Capital Mapping

Cyber Central

City Region Board

Strategic Plan for Growth

Total Allocations

Nov 17

Nov 
17/Feb 
20/

Nov 17

Nov 18

Nov 18

Sept 19

Feb 20

Nov 
19/Jan21

June 21

336
828

3,438

4,602

(4)

(250)

(75)

(275)

0

0

(604)

3,998

970
4,968

0

(250)

0

0

0

(16)

(40)

(100)

0

(406)

4,562

731
5,293

(5)

(250)

0

0

0

(3)

0

(100)

(410)

(768)

4,525

848
5,373

(5)

(250)

0

0

(50)

(51)

0

(100)

(1,590)

(1,800)

(3,846)

1,527

800
2,327

(5)

(250)

0

0

0

0

0

(100)

0

0

(355)

SEDF Balance c/f 3,998 4,562 4,525 1,527 1,972

Page 84



Notes
 SEDF balance held and accounted for by Gloucestershire County Council

Page 85



This page is intentionally left blank



Gloucestershire Business Rates Pool – SEDF Funding Assessment 

Cirencester to Kemble Feasibility Study

Gloucestershire Economic Growth Senior Officer Group’s consideration of SEDF application against 
eligibility criteria

The bid is from a ‘sponsoring’ partner authority of the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint 
Committee (‘Joint Committee’) or the Gloucestershire Local Economic Partnership
Senior Officer Group assessment:

Cotswold District Council is the sponsoring partner authority and promoter of the funding bid.

The bid relates to one off or fixed term funding
Senior Officer Group assessment:

The project sponsored by Cotswold District Council seeks £65,000 one-off revenue investment to 
deliver a feasibility study of transport options between Cirencester and Kemble which will improve 
links between the main railway line and town and area of Cirencester.  The study will give greater 
insight into the annual revenue costs and overall feasibility of the preferred option(s).   Annual 
revenue costs of any selected option will not be the subject of further SEDF bids. 

The bid relates to revenue support for enabling activity which:
 Support economic growth projects, partnership support or
 Enable the commissioning of economic research, intelligence, pre development work or 

feasibility studies or 
 Provide pump priming funding contributions or 
 Provide essential leverage match funding to support the delivery of broader local economic 

projects or programmes.
Senior Officer Group assessment:

This bid enables the commissioning of economic research, intelligence etc through the study of the 
feasibility of transport options between Kemble and Cirencester.  The aim will be to identify further 
appropriate for delivery which will support the economic growth of the area through effective 
transport and the promotion of tourism.  

The bid provides evidence of clearly demonstrating the economic benefits and contribution it is 
likely to make in supporting the delivery of growth of the local economy and communities, as well 
as planned outcomes.

Improvement of transport links between the Kemble mainline railway station and the town and area 
of Cirencester will support economic growth, increase tourism potential and green transport.  The 
Senior Officer Group are supportive of the bid.

Further conditions if the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Committee approves the bid:

Section 151 Officer’s confirmation that sufficient funds are available in the Strategic Economic 
Development Fund during the relevant financial year.

Page 87



The SEDF Section 151 officer confirms that funds are available in SEDF to fund this bid. 

Local Strategic Fit Scoring Criteria - Assessment of the ranking of the bid in terms of alignment 
against ‘Strategic Fit’  (as outlined in Annex A)

The Senior Officer Group considered the request for funding and the bid was given a score of 4 out 
of 5 as a strong fit with future economic growth within Cotswold District.

Terms and conditions of the approved bid (to include any binding conditions to any approved 
funding to which the applicant body will be required to agreed before any release of funding, plus 
reporting requirements)

Release of Funding – funding to be drawn down by Cotswold District Council.  The Council will be 
responsible for commissioning the Kemble Cirencester transport links feasibility study.

GEGJC Reporting – On completion the study findings will be reported back to the Committee for 
consideration and interest.

Recommendations to the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee

The Gloucestershire Economic Growth Senior Officer Group recommend the Gloucestershire 
Economic Growth Joint Committee approve the bid set out above for the reasons confirmed below:

1. The feasibility study will support the development of appropriate transport links between 
Kemble and Cirencester which will allow further consideration of transport link 
improvements in this area which will support economic growth, tourist access and public 
transport options.

Page 88



GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH JOINT COMMITTEE WORK PLAN 2021/22

Meeting Date Subject Purpose Key Notes/Actions 

17 November 2021 Gloucestershire Economic 
Growth Joint Scrutiny 
Committee Update

Standing item 

Review of Gloucestershire 
Covid-19 Economy Recovery 
Plans (All councils to provide 
brief reviews of their plans).

Standing item

GFirst LEP Update, including an 
update on the Government’s 
review of LEPs, and an update 
on the Made in Gloucestershire 
concept.

Standing item 

Business Rates Pool including 
updates on the performance of 
SEDF/bid proposals from the 
SOG

Standing item/information report plus 
possible requests (key decisions) for SEDF 
funding bids (proposed/assessed by the 
SOG)

SEDF funding request to investigate options 
to better connect Kemble Train Centre to 
Cirencester Town Centre. 

Possible key 
decisions

Forward Plan including 
emerging SEDF proposals

Standing item 

Employment and Skills 
Strategy, including:

- The upskilling and 
employment of local 
people (How is this 
being achieved?)

- Analysis on 
delivery/HGC drivers in 

Information item

P
age 89

A
genda Item

 11



GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH JOINT COMMITTEE WORK PLAN 2021/22

Gloucestershire (How 
many are there/ are we 
short of?)

 (Pete Carr)
Skills Landscape and Emerging 
Policy Changes

Information item

Update on Strategic Planning in 
Gloucestershire

Annual item 

16 March 2022 Gloucestershire Economic 
Growth Joint Scrutiny 
Committee Update

Standing item

GFirst LEP Update Standing item

Business Rates Pool including 
updates on the performance of 
SEDF/bid proposals from the 
SOG

Standing item/information report plus 
possible requests (key decisions) for SEDF 
funding bids (proposed/assessed by the 
SOG)

Possible key 
decisions

Forward Plan including 
emerging SEDF proposals?

Standing item

Concept of a Mass Transit 
System in Gloucestershire (Dr 
David Land – GCC)

Information item

Statement of Common Ground 
Action Plan  (Tracey Crews)

Information item

Green Skills and Jobs (GEGSC 
to consider)

Discussion item

Broadband in the County Information item 
Future Items

UK Shared Prosperity Fund 
(Autumn 2021)

Information item

Gloucestershire Growth Hub 
Network

Information item/Activity report

Business Rates Pooling in Information item/ possible decision (Andrew 

P
age 90



GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH JOINT COMMITTEE WORK PLAN 2021/22

Gloucestershire for future years Cummings)
Health inequality within 
Gloucestershire and its impact 
on economic growth.

Information item

P
age 91



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes
	GEGJC Action Sheet - 15 September 2021

	5 Employment and Skills
	Doc 2 Outline of Gloucestershire Skills Strategy
	Doc 3 Gloucestershire Skills Strategy structure for GEGJC Nov 2021
	Doc 4 upskilling and employment
	Doc 5 HGV drivers
	Employment and skills slides for GEGJC Nov 2021

	6 Review of Gloucestershire Covid-19 Economic Recovery Plans
	Economic Dashboard November 2021 [Read-Only]

	7 Forest of Dean Biosphere Reserve
	8 Strategic Planning in Gloucestershire
	9 GFirst LEP Update
	10 Business Rate Pool
	SEDF Bid Assessment - Cirencester to Kemble Feasibility Study (2)

	11 Forward (Work) Plan

